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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE AT e

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES D\VC
&Y ‘//N\H DIVISION OF
Public Health Services

Improving health, preventing disease, reducing costs for all

29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301-6527
603-271-4501 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4501
Fax: 603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

José Thier Montero
Director

March 25, 2015

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
State House
- Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, to
exercise a renewal option and amend a contract with New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence, Purchase Order # 1031528, Vendor # 155510-B001, PO Box 353, 4 South State
Street, Concord, NH 03302-0353, by increasing the Price Limitation by $554,760 from $463,111 to
$1,017,871 to provide sexual violence prevention services, and extend the Completion Date from June
30, 2015 to June 30, 2017, effective July 1, 2015 or the date of Governor and Council approval,
whichever is later. This agreement was originally approved by Governor and Council on June 19,
2013, Item #88, and amended on October 1, 2014, Item # 11. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in SFY 2016 and SFY 2017 upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with authority to adjust encumbrances
between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, without further approval from the Governor and
Executive Council, if needed and justified.

05-95-90-902010-5190, HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND
COMMUNITY SERVICES, MATERNAL AND CHILD HEALTH

State Current Increased
Fiscal Class / Job Modified | (Decreased) Total
Year Account Class Title Number Budget Amount Amount
2014 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Sve | 90004008 138,938 0.00 138,938
2014 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc | 90016006 30,000 0.00 30,000
Sub Total | $168,938 $0.00 $168,938
2015 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Sve | 90004008 264,173 0.00 264 173
2015 | 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc | 90016006 30,000 0.00 30,000
Sub Total $294,173 $0.00 $294,173
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2016 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Sve | 90004008 0.00 247,380 247,380

2016 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc | 90016006 0.00 30,000 30,000
Sub Total $0.00 $277,380 $277,380

2017 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Sve | 90004008 0.00 247,380 247,380

2017 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Sve | 90016006 0.00 30,000 30,000
Sub Total $0.00 $277,380 $277,380
TOTAL $463,111 $554,760 | $1,017,871

EXPLANATION

Funds in this agreement will be used for activities designed to reduce sexual violence. The
vendor and its member programs will provide training and sexual violence prevention education to New
Hampshire students and college age residents. The vendor and its member programs will also provide
professional development for teachers and law enforcement. All activities will be aligned with the goals
of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Rape Prevention and Education Program and the
New Hampshire Sexual Violence Prevention Plan.

Sexual violence has far reaching impacts on the lives of victims, bystanders, and perpetrators.
Sexual violence includes sexual harassment, sexual threats and intimidation, rape, attempted rape,
incest, sexual assault by intimate partners, child sexual abuse, sexual exploitation, sexual trafficking,
stalking, and other forms of unwelcome or coerced sexualized activity. Physical violence or contact
other than the sexualized abuse itself may or may not be present and are not necessary elements of
sexual violence. Sexual violence is commonly based upon power and control of the victim using sexual
means.

Sexual violence, including rape, is preventable. Recognizing this, Congress passed the
Violence Against Women Act in 1994. This landmark legislation established the Rape Prevention and
Education Program at the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. The goal of the Rape
Prevention and Education Program is to strengthen sexual violence prevention efforts. It does this by
providing funding to all states and territories. The Injury Prevention Program is the steward of these
funds for the state of New Hampshire. The Injury Prevention Program has historically worked with the
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence to distribute the majority of these
funds to their member programs/crisis centers located throughout the state. The Coalition does this
through a funding mechanism based on population as well as the number of sexual violence victims
served.

In State Fiscal Year 2014, over 1,500 educational sessions on the primary prevention of sexual
violence took place with over 32,000 participants consisting of students of all ages. These sessions
were facilitated by prevention educators at the individual member programs /crisis centers of the
Coalition. Of those sessions evaluated, there was significant change in the understanding of consent
and a willingness to act as an informed bystander. In addition, approximately 200 professionals were
trained on best practice with respect to the prevention of sexual violence. These professionals include
teachers, law enforcement, and other first responders. The majority of participants felt more
competent in facilitating prevention strategies after the training. The education sessions targeted to
students and those targeted to professionals are evaluated to ensure an overall better understanding
of sexual violence prevention strategies. The reduction of sexual violence is a long term process and
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difficult to measure. Interim measures, such as a decrease on the Youth Risk Behavior Survey in
affirmative answers to sexual violence questions, improve annually.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this Request, New Hampshire citizens
may not have the opportunity to take part in prevention activities. The impact could potentially increase
the incidence of sexual violence in the State.

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence was selected for this project
through a competitive bid process. The Bid Summary is attached.

As referenced in the original letter approved by Governor and Council on June 19, 2013, ltem
#88, and in Exhibit C of the contract, this competitively procured Agreement has the option to renew for
two (2) additional year(s), contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council.  The Division is exercising this
renewal option.

The Contractor has successfully performed and achieved the performance measures of the
original contract. The Contractor will ensure that the following performance measures are annually
achieved and monitored monthly to measure the effectiveness of the agreement:

e 80% of primary sexual violence prevention programs targeted to students will be evaluated
and analyzed.

e 80% of primary sexual violence prevention programs targeted to professionals will be
evaluated and analyzed through post training surveys on changes in confidence and
competence in facilitating sexual violence prevention strategies.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Fund from the United States Department of Health and
Human Services, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Toomruget g

José Thier Montero, MD, MHCDS
Director ]

Approved by&~ XL A\

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #2 to the
Sexual Violence Prevention Services

This 2" Amendment to the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence,
contract (hereinafter referred to as “Amendment Two”) dated this 23rd day of March, 2015, is by
and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
(hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department”) and New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a corporation with a
place of business at 4 South State Street, Concord, NH 03302-0353.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on June 19, 2013, Item #88 and amended on October 1, 2014, Item #11, the
Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in
the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the State may modify the scope
of work and the payment schedule of the contract by written agreement of the parties;

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation,
and modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services, and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Change the completion date in the P-37, Block 1.7, of the General Provisions to read:
June 30, 2017

2. Change the price limitation in P-37, Block 1.8, of the General Provisions, to read:
$1,017,871

3. Delete Exhibit A and Exhibit A Amendment #1 and replace with Exhibit A Amendment #2

4. Amend Exhibit B to add to paragraph 1:

1.3. The contract shall increase by $277,380 for SFY 2016 and $277,380 for SFY 2017,
for a total increase of $554,760.

1.4. Funding is available as follows:

e $494,760 = 100% federal funds from the US Department of Health and Human
Services, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, CFDA #93.136, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) UF2CE002431. Account # 05-95-90-902010-5190-102-
500731, $247,380 in SFY 2016, and $247,380 in SFY 2017.

CA/DHHS/100213 Contractor Initials:Lms
Page 1 of 3 Date'ilng



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

e $60,000 = 100% federal funds from the US Department of Health and Human Services,
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, CFDA #93.758, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) BO10OT009037. Account # 05-95-90-902010-5190-102-
500731, $30,000 in SFY 2016, and $30,000 in SFY 2017.

5. Amend Budget to add:

o Exhibit B-1 Amendment #2 Budget SFY 2016
o Exhibit B-1 Amendment #2 Budget SFY 2017

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

) I ﬂw\ﬂt{?)’

Date Brook Dupee -
Bureau Chief

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence

3/%}15

Date '

Name: [y )/N- ScuececT
Eocture Nuctr

Acknowledgement:

N@U/Qflm hre
State Of/gg?ﬁiﬁé , County of Mernmack on S-H /5 before the

undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this
document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary PublicAr Justice of the Peace

/&CLI'\QIQ Lﬁ/n(«}/’:;)/\

Name and Title of Notany/or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires: &C/Dét’/ 919 2009
S

CA/DHHS/100213 Contractor Initials.u/n
Page 2 of 3 Date:_3 [‘7



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date | [ Name:  pgu, A\{.{M
Title: H‘_‘

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive

Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

CA/DHHS/100213 Contractor lnitials:ws
Page 3 of 3 Date: B




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #2

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. General Provisions

1.1. Required Services

The Contractor shall:

1.1.1.

Provide primary prevention activities for the reduction of sexual violence in
alignment with the goals and objectives of the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention's (CDC) Rape Prevention and Education (RPE) Grant and the New
Hampshire Sexual Violence Prevention Plan (Federal grant Workplan and
Evaluation Plan).

Attend quarterly meetings and act as Co-Chair of the Sexual Violence
Prevention Planning and Implementation Committee (SVPPIC) towards the
goal of advising on the implementation of the Sexual Violence Prevention Plan.

Subcontract for the development, implementation, evaluation, and reporting of
primary sexual violence prevention programming statewide for professionals,
youth, adolescents, college students, and the general public, across the entire
socioecological spectrum. This must include at least one yearly example from
every subcontractor of appropriate community mobilization efforts, policy
change, norms change, and coalition building with partners and key
stakeholders.

Subcontract for the provision of evaluation services, including the
implementation of the Federal grant Evaluation Plan.

The contractor shall fund a full-time Prevention Coordinator position to provide
programmatic and technical assistance to subcontracted member programs,
as well as provide oversight of RPE grant implementation activities at the New
Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Viclence (NHCADSV) level.
Send staff to the annual CDC Grantee Meeting, and other meetings and/or
training identified by the DHHS/DPHS.

1.2. Quality or Performance Improvement (Ql/Pi

The Contractor shall:

1.21.

CU/DHHS/011414

Submit data reports quarterly. The DHHS/DPHS will notify the contractor at
least 30 days in advance of any changes in the submission schedule. Data
shall include, but not be limited to:

a) Professional trainings including number, type, location, audience and
results of any evaluation conducted.

b) Educational sessions including number, type, grade if student audience
(preschool, elementary, middle school, high school, and college), location,
and results of any evaluation conducted.

Exhibit A - Amendment #2 - Scope of Services Contractor Initials UY‘S y
Page 1 of 4 Date 3&_&




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A— Amendment #2

1.2.2.

1.2.3.

1.2.4.

c) Detailed information on any community mobilization, policy change, norms
change and coalition building applicable to sexual violence prevention.

d) Updates on services and any evaluation training provided to
subcontractors.

e) Written narrative on prevention strategies used and how and what risk and
protective factors were addressed.

Complete and submit an annual needs assessment with respect to sexual
violence prevention that will include data collection, sources used, as well as
target populations.

Allow a team or person authorized by the DHHS/DPHS to periodically review
the contractor’'s systems of governance, administration, data collection and
submission, programmatic, and financial management in order to assure
systems are adequate to provide the contracted services.

Take corrective actions as advised by the review team if contracted services
are not found to be provided in accordance with this exhibit.

1.3. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Standards of Care

The Contractor shall:

1.3.1.

1.3.2.

1.3.3.

1.34.

1.3.5.

1.3.6.

CU/DHHS/011414

Ensure equal access to quality health services and provide culturally and
linguistically appropriate services according to the following guidelines

Assess the ethnic/cultural needs, resources and assets of their community.

Promote the knowledge and skills necessary for staff to work effectively with
consumers with respect to their culturally and linguistically diverse
environment.

When feasible and appropriate, provide clients of limited English proficiency
(LEP) with interpretation services. Persons of LEP are defined as those who
do not speak English as their primary language and whose skills in listening
to, speaking, or reading English are such that they are unable to adequately
understand and participate in the care or in the services provided to them
without language assistance.

Offer consumers a forum through which clients have the opportunity to provide
feedback to providers and organizations regarding cultural and linguistic
issues that may deserve response.

Maintain a program policy that sets forth compliance with Title VI, Language
Efficiency and Proficiency. The policy shall describe the way in which the
items listed above were addressed and shall indicate the circumstances in
which interpretation services are provided and the method of providing service
(e.g. trained interpreter, staff person who speaks the language of the client or
language line).

Exhibit A — Amendment #2 - Scope of Services Contractor Initials UV\‘S
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #2

1.4. State and Federal Laws

1.41.

14.2.

The Contractor shall be responsible for compliance with all relevant state and
federal laws. Special attention is called to the following statutory
responsibilities:

Ensure that all persons employed by the contractor shall comply with the
reporting requirements of New Hampshire RSA 169:C, Child Protection Act;
RSA 161:F46, Protective Services to Adults, RSA 631:6, Assault and Related
Offences.

1.5. Relevant Policies and Guidelines

1.5.1.

The contractor shall promulgate appropriate policies and guidelines to ensure
the consistency and adequacy of work performed by subcontracted agencies
and shall, through regular meetings and through quality reviews, monitor and
provide support to the work of these agencies.

1.6. Publications Funded Under Contract

1.6.1.

1.6.2.

1.6.3.

The DHHS and/or its funders will retain COPYRIGHT ownership for any and
all original materials produced with DHHS contract funding, including, but not
limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines, posters, or
reports.

All documents (written, video, audio, electronic) produced, reproduced, or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DPHS before
printing, production, distribution, or use.

The Contractor shall credit DHHS on all materials produced under this
contract following the instructions outlined in Exhibit C (14).

1.7. Subcontractors

1.71.

1.7.2.

Services required to comply with this Contract are provided by subcontracted
agencies. The DHHS/DPHS, must be notified in writing of changes in the
subcontract agencies that will deliver services. In addition, subcontractors
must be held responsible to fulfill all relevant requirements included in this
exhibit.

In addition, the original DPHS Contractor will remain liable for all requirements
included in this Exhibit and carried out by subcontractors.

2. Staffing Provisions

2.1. New Hires

214,

CU/DHHS/011414

The Contractor shall notify the DHHS/DPHS in writing within one month of hire
when a new administrator, clinical coordinator, or any staff person essential to
carrying out contracted services is hired to work in the program.

Resumes of new staff shall be submitted to DHHS/DPHS with the agency's
application for funding.

Exhibit A =~ Amendment #2 - Scope of Services Contractor Initialsm
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A-— Amendment #2

2.2. Vacancies

2.2.1.

222

The contractor must notify the DHHS/DPHS in writing if any critical position is
vacant for more than one month, of if at any time funded under this contract
does not have adequate staffing to perform all required services for more than
one month. This may be done through a budget revision

Before an agency hires new program personnel that do not meet the required
staff qualifications, the agency shall notify the DHHS/DPHS in writing
requesting a waiver of the applicable staffing requirements. The Section may
grant waiver based on the need of the program, individuals' experience, and
additional training.

3. Performance Measures

3.1. The Contractor shall ensure that following performance measures are annually
achieved and monitored monthly to measure the effectiveness of the agreement:

3.1.1. 80% of primary sexual violence prevention programs will be evaluated and
analyzed.

3.1.2.  80% of primary sexual violence prevention programs targeted to professionals
will be evaluated and analyzed through post training surveys on changes in
confidence and competence in facilitating sexual violence prevention
strategies.

3.2. Annually, the Contractor shall develop and submit to the DHHS, a corrective action

plan for any performance measure that was not achieved.

CU/DHHS/011414

3

Page 4 of 4 Date
T

Exhibit A — Amendment #2 - Scope of Services Contractor Initials ng
2 91 H




Exhibit B-1 Amendment #2 Budget Form

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Bidder/Contractor Name: NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Budget Request for: Sexual Violence Prevention Services
(Name of RFP)
Budget Period: SFY 2016
ocation Method for
em. . . . Indirect/Fixed Cost

1. Total Salary/Wages $ 37,002.00] % - $ 37,002.00

2. Employee Benefits $ 9,498.00 | $ - $ 9,498.00

3. Consultants $ - $ - $ -

4. Equipment: $ - $ - $ -
Rental $ - $ - $ -
Repair and Maintenance $ - $ - $ -
Purchase/Depreciation $ - $ - $ -

5. Supplies: $ - $ - $ -
Educational $ - $ - $ -
Lab $ - |3 N -
Pharmacy $ - $ - $ -
Medical $ - $ - $ -
Office $ 200.00] $ - $ 200.00

6. Travel $ 347000 % - $ 3,470.00

7. Occupancy $ 1,450.00 | $ - $ 1,450.00

8. Current Expenses $ - $ - $ -
Telephone $ 500.00] $ - $ 500.00
Postage $ 100.00 | $ - $ 100.00
Subscriptions $ - $ - $ -
Audit and Legal $ 500.00 1 $ - $ 500.00
Insurance $ 500.00] & - $ 500.00
Board Expenses $ - $ - $ -

9. Software $ - 3 - $ -

10. Marketing/Communications 3 270.00§ § - $ 270.00

11. Staff Education and Training $ - $ - $ -

12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ 222410001 $ - $ 222,410.00

13. Other (specific details mandatory): | $ - $ - $ -

Maintenance & Repairs of computers,

snow plowing & office cleaning $ 1,480.00 | $ - 3 1,480.00

$ - $ - $ -

$ - $ - $ -

$ - $ - $ -

$ - $ - $ -
TOTAL $ 277,380.00{ $ - $ 277,380.00 ]

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0%

Exhibit B-1 - Budget Contractor Initials: (/N
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Exhibit B-1 Amendment #2 Budget Form

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Bidder/Contractor Name: Violence
Budget Request for: Sexual Violence Prevention Services
(Name of RFP)
Budget Period: SFY 2017
! tal

1. Total Salary/Wages $ 37,002.00]5% $ 37,002.00

2. Employee Benefits $ 9,498.00 | $ - $ 9,498.00

3. Consultants $ - $ - $ -

4. Equipment: $ - $ - $ -
Rental 5 - 5 - $ -
Repair and Maintenance 3 - $ - 3 -
Purchase/Depreciation $ - $ - 5 -

5. Supplies: $ - $ - $ -
Educational $ - $ - $ -
Lab $ - 19 - |9 B
Pharmacy $ - $ - $ -
Medical $ - 3 - $ -
Office $ 20000} % - $ 200.00

6. Travel $ 3,470001 % - $ 3,470.00

7. Occupancy $ 1,450.00 | $ - $ 1,450.00

8. Current Expenses 3 - $ - 3 -
Telephone $ 500.00 | $ - $ 500.00
Postage $ 100.00 | $ - $ 100.00
Subscriptions $ - $ - $ -
Audit and Legal $ 500.00 | $ - $ 500.00
Insurance $ 500.00 | $ - $ 500.00
Board Expenses $ - $ - $ -

9. Software $ - $ - $ -

10. Marketing/Communications $ 270.00§ $ - $ 270.00

11. Staff Education and Training $ - $ - 3 -

12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ 222,410.00]5% - $ 222,410.00

13. Other (specific details mandatory): | $ - $ - $ -

Maintenance & Repairs of computers,

snow plowing & office cleaning $ 1,480.001 $ - $ 1,480.00

$ - $ - $ -

$ - $ - $ -

$ - $ - $ -

$ - $ - $ -
TOTAL $ 277,380.00 | % - $ 277,380.00 |

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0%

Exhibit B-1 - Budget Contractor Initials: UY\S
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State of Nefw Hampshice
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that NEW HAMPSHIRE COALITION AGAINST DOMESTIC AND SEXUAL
VIOLENCE is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed April 30, 1981. I further
certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is concerned, having filed the

return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, 1 hereto
set my hand and cause to be atfixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 16™ day of April A.D, 2014

Ziy Skl

Witliam M. Gardner
Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

|, __ Elizabeth Garon , do hereby certify that:

1. I am a duly elected Officer of the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence.

(hgaency Name)
2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on April 22, 2014:

£ )
P

RESOLVED: That the Executive Director
: E

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to

execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,

or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

o £ e e
v Contract bionsad

the 24th day of March 2015__

4. _Lyn M. Schollett is the duly elected _ Executive Director

IMame of Contract Slanatorys {Title of Oo

sttt

nture offhe Elerfed Offcen

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
County of Merrimack

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 24™ day of March, 2015,

By C/ Zce ée,C/’é\ ()"&,@/\

waine of Blected Officer of the Age

ﬁ@w& Cong st

{hotary Pobii SlecH

Commission Expires: /0 29-/9

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1, 2005
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MMDD/YYYY)
8/6/2014

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND,

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: If the certificate hoider is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

policy{ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to

the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

PRODUCER
E & S Insurance Services LLC
21 Meadowbrook Lane

P O Box 7425

CORTACT Fat Mack

[AC No, Exp; (603)293-2791 [Fax Nop (60312937135

E%@Eﬁ. pat@esinsurance.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
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P.0. Box 353

Concord, NH 03302-0353
Phone: (603)-224-8893
fax: (603)-228-6096

www.nhcadsy.org

Statewide Toll Free Hotlines
Domestic Violence:
1-866-644-3574

Sexual Assault:
1-800-277-5570

MEMBERS:

RESPONSE to Sexual &
Domestic Violence
Berlin

Groveton

Turning Points Network
Claremont
Newport

Crisis Center of Central
New Hampshire
Concord

Starting Polnt
Conway
Ossipee

Sexual Harassment and Rape
Prevention Program (SHARPP)
University of New Hompshire
Durham

Monadnock Center for
Violence Prevention
Keene

New Beginnings
Laconia

WISE
Lebanon

The Support Center at Burch House
Littleton

YWCA Crisis Service
Manchester

Bridges: Domestic and
Sexual Violence Support
Nashua

Milford

Voices Aguainst Violence
Plymouth

A Safe Place
Portsmouth
Rochester
Salem

Sexual Assanlt Support Services
Portsmouth
Rochester
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AGAINST DOMESTIC
AND SEXUAL VIOTENCE

NHCADSYV Vision and Mission

Vision
All New Hampshire communities provide safety for every person.

Mission

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
creates safe and just communities through advocacy, prevention and
empowerment of anyone affected by sexual violence, domestic
violence and stalking.

Note: The language below will be used in grant applications and other
documents to provide further clarification of what thc Coalition does.
The statement above is the actual Mission Statement.

This mission is accomplished by the Coalition, which includes 14
independent community-based member programs, a Board of
Directors and a central staff working together to:

¢ Influence public policy on the local, state and national levels;

¢ Ensure that quality services are provided to victims;

» Promote the accountability of societal systems and
communities for their responses to sexual violence, domestic
violence and stalking;

* Prevent violence and abuse before they occur.

Approved April, 2011
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalition

Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Concord, New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanying financial statements New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June
30, 2014 and the related statement of activities and changes in net assets, statement of functional expenses,
and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. The prior year
summarized comparative information has been derived from New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic
and Sexual Violence’s 2013 financial statements and, in our report dated September 20, 2013; we expressed
an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsiblc for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements arc frce of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor corsiders internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statcments.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statcments referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of New ITampshire Coalition Against Domecstic and Sexual Violence as of June 30, 2014 and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.



Other Matters

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Office of Management and
Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, is presented
for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordancc with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 5,
2014, on our consideration of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence’s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering New 1lampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

W &—/4“4?‘?%, Fe

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
September 5, 2014




New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Statements of Financial Position
June 30,2014 and 2013

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash, unrestricted
Cash, temporarily restricted
Grants Receivable
Prepaid Expenses
Total Current Assets

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Land
Building

Equipment
Building Improvements

Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Property and Equipment, Net

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses
Total Current Liabilitics

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Portion

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted
Temporarily Restricted
Total Net Asscts

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

Sce Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
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2014 2013
310,809 $ 313,850
60,746 37,344
822,277 780,398
10,583 11,183
1,204,415 1,142,775
52,143 52,143
267,592 267,592
101,698 103,423
25,736 25,736
447,169 448,894
(199,271) (192,644)
247,898 256,250
1,452,313 1,399,025
5,206 4,690
674,314 673,792
42,914 53,488
722,434 731,970
55,127 60,504
614,006 569,207
60,746 37,344
674,752 606,551
1,452,313 $ 1,399,025




New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Statements of Activities

Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

2014 2013
UNSTRICTED NET ASSETS
Support and Revenue:
Grant Revenue $ 4,267,673 $ 4,142,501
Contributions 218,747 244940
Donated Services 113,579 169,539
Miscellaneous income 36,956 35,146
Total Support and Revenue 4,636,955 4,592,126
NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS
Restrictions Satisfied by Payments 101,034 141,510
EXPENSES
Program Services 4,291,396 4,292,905
Management and General 387,937 384,447
Fundraising 13,856 13,731
Total expenses 4,693,189 4,691,083
Increase in Unstricted Net Assets 44,800 42,553
TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
Grant Revenue 124,435 110,675
Restrictions Satisfied by Payments (101,034) (141,510)
Increase (Decrease) in Temporarily
Restricted Net Assets 23,401 (30,835)
INCREASE IN NET ASSETS 68,201 11,718
NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 606,551 594,833
NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $ 674,752 $ 606,551

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
4




New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended June 30, 2014
With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2013

Salaries

Payroll taxes

Health and Life Insurance
Dental & Other Emp Benefits
Professional Services
Contract/Grant Services
Memberships
Publications
Advertising/Recruitment
Copying

Office Supplies

Postage

Printing

Equipment & Moving
Maintcnance & Repair
Rent Expense

Interest

Parking

Insurance

Retreats

PMC Stipend

Staff Development
Travel

Telephone

Utilities

Miscellaneous

AVAP Miscellaneous Expense
AVAP Direct Administration
Dircct Training
Community Education
Depreciation Expense
Accounting Fees

Total Expenses

Program Management & Total Total
Services General Fundraising 2014 2013
§ 621,002 $ 244,902 $ 8,747 874,651 § 873,894
50,229 19,808 707 70,744 67,995
45,186 17,819 636 63,641 60,168
22,638 8,928 319 31,885 33,206
70,225 27,694 989 98,908 131,957
3,209,625 - - 3,209,625 3,132,729
3,694 - - 3,694 3,140
291 - - 291 324
7,361 2,903 104 10,368 1,202
3,340 1,317 47 4,704 3,816
7,920 3,123 112 11,155 12,143
3,546 1,398 50 4,994 6,881
3,829 1,510 54 5,393 6,632
169 67 2 238 3,460
19,441 7,667 274 27,382 16,549
373 147 5 525 500
2,387 942 34 3,363 4,058
204 81 3 288 -
6,073 2,395 85 8,553 7,627
3,136 1,237 44 4,417 3,986
1,917 756 27 2,700 3,900
11,408 4,499 161 16,068 8,860
39,816 15,702 561 56,079 54,300
34,008 13,412 479 47,899 34,451
5,187 2,046 73 7,306 6,096
6,896 2,720 97 9,713 13,044
40,706 - - 40,706 84,293
3,659 - - 3,659 2,609
49,724 - - 49,724 84,637
- - - - 2,446
8,980 3,541 127 12,648 15,608
8,426 3,323 119 11,868 10,563
$ 4,291,396 $ 387,937 $ 13,856 4,693,189 $ 4,691,083

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30,2014 and 2013

2014 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Increase in Net Assets $ 68,201 $ 11,718
Adjustments to Reconcile Increase in Net Assets to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities
Change in restricted cash (23,402) 30,835
Depreciation 12,648 15,608
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 662 56
(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:
Grants Receivable (41,879) 62,194
Prepaid Expenses 600 73
Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 522 (49,816)
Accrued Expenses (10,574) (6,319)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITES 6,778 64,349
CASH FLLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of Fixed Assets (4,958) (1,080)
NET CASH USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (4,958) (1,080)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of Long-Term Debt (4,861) (4,416)
NET CASH USED BY FINANCING ACTIVITES (4,861) (4,416)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN UNRESTRICTED CASH (3,041) 58,853
UNRESTRICTED CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 313,850 254,997
UNRESTRICTED CASH AT END OF YEAR $§ 310,809 $ 313,850
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year for;
Interest b 3,363 § 4058
Donated Services $ 113,579 $ 169,539

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
-6-



New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Activities

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence (the Coalition) is a statewide

network of 14 independent member programs committed to ending domestic and sexual violence. The :
Coalition assists its member groups by providing technical assistance and training, support in developing !
new programs, and by serving as a statewide clearinghouse and coordinating organization. It administers

state and federal contracts that provide funding for its member programs.

Vision
All New Hampshire communities provide safety for every person.
Mission

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence creates safe and just
communities through advocacy, prevention and empowerment of anyone affected by sexual violence,
domestic violence and stalking.

This mission is accomplished by the Coalition, which includes 14 independent community-based
member programs, a board of directors and a central staff working together to:

o Influence public policy on the local, state and national levels;

o Ensure that quality services are provided to victims;

s Promote the accountability of societal systems and communities for their responses to sexual
violence, domestic violence and stalking;

e Prevent violence and abuse before they occur.

The Coalition is an umbrella organization that provides technical and financial support to 14 member
agency crisis centers who in turn provide services to survivors of sexual assault, domestic violence, human
trafficking, and stalking.

The Coalition supports member agency staff with specialized training and resources, convenes member

programs to facilitate shared learning and peer support, and collects and disseminates best practices and

current information. Coalition staff participates in numerous statewide boards and commissions to advocate

for effective responses (o victims. i

Coalition staff provides legal education and training to court and law enforcement officials and attorneys, |
and collaborates with legal assistance organizations that provide lawyers for survivors and their families.
Coalition staff work to promote cross-system collaboration with child protective services and child
advocacy centers (o assure safety for children exposed to or who have experienced domestic and sexual
violence, and for their parcnts,

The Coalition’s Public Policy staff work closely with other advocacy groups and legislators on drafting
legislation, organizing testimony, and advocating for policy change throughout the session. The Coalition
either takes an active role in or tracks close to 150 bills each Tegislative Session. These bills address a
wide range of issues including domestic and sexual violence; stalking; family law; divorce and child
custody/visitation/support; reproductive rights; judicial matters and law enforcement; privacy and personal :
information; healthcare; and economic justice issues.



New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

Nature of Activities (Continued)

The Coalition develops statewide plans to prevent domestic and sexual violence. Coalition staff is
proactive in educating the public on the causes and effccts of domestic and sexual violence and stalking and
the services available across the state. The Coalition has sponsored research on the prevalence of violence
in New Hampshire. Coalition staff provides resources and sources for responsible news media and
reporting,

The Coalition also manages several specific programs to assist its member crisis centers and the public,
The following are three distinct programs that directly affect survivors of domestic violence, sexual
violence and stalking:

AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program (AVAD)

The AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program (AVAP) is a multi-agency collaboration housed by the
Coalition that ensures direct services are available to victims of domestic and sexual violence and stalking
throughout New Hampshire.

Members of the AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program are placed throughout New Hampshire at crisis
centers, police departments, prosecutor offices, the New Hampshire Department of Corrections, and child
advocacy centers to offer support and information to victims of domestic and sexual violence and stalking.
Providing suppott and advocacy to victims in district court is a core component of AVAP, extending the
services that are available to victims throughout the state.

AVAP is part of AmeriCorps, a national service program that offers opportunities to Americans who are
interested in making a substantial commitment to serve their country through national service.

Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) Program

The Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner Progran, known as SANE, is a joint project of the Coalition and the
NH Department of Justice. A Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner is a Registered Nurse who has been specially
trained to provide comprehensive care to sexual assault survivors, who demonstrates competency in
conducting medical/forensic examinations and who has the ability to be a witness if a sexual assault case
goes to trial. Coalition staff are responsible for working with registered SANEs and medical professionals i
across the state to ensure that scxual assault victims receive consistent and professional care during forensic ]
exams. The NH Department of Justice and the Coalition co-convene the SANE Advisory Board.
|
1

The Domestic Violence Specialist Program

Research shows a high correlation (40-60%) between the perpetration of domestic violence and the
perpetration of child abuse and neglect (co-occurrence) in the same family. The Domestic Violence
Specialist Program was built on the principle that abused and neglected children are best served when they
can remain in a safe household with a non-violent parent.

The Domestic Violence Specialist program began in 1998 as a coordinated effort between the Coalition and
the Division for Children, Youth, and Families (DCYF). Domestic Violence Specialists (DVSs) are
employed by local member programs of the Coalition, and are co-located at local District Offices of DCYF.
The DVSs are a source of assistance and training to child protective service workers (CPSW) while
providing advocacy services to victims of domestic violence involved with DCYF, This program results in
more effective assistance to victims through the development of interventions that recognize the adult
victim’s need for support and advocacy in order to improve safety outcomes for children.

-8-



New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Coalition have been prepared in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applied to not-for-profits. The Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting principles
for not-for-profits. The more significant of the FASB’s generally accepted accounting principles applicable
to the Coalition, and the Coalition’s conformity with such principles, are described below. These
disclosures are an integral part of the Coalition’s financial statements.

Financial Statement Presentation

The Coalition is required to report information regarding its financial position and activitics according to
three classes of nct asscts: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently
restricted net assets. In addition, the Coalition is required to present a statement of cash flows. The
Coalition additionally maintains a classification of land, building and equipment within its unrestricted net
asset statements of activity, which is combined into total unrestricted net assets.

Grants Receivable and Promises to Give

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Coalition that is, in substance,
unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in untrestricted nct
assets if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized. All other donor-
restricted contributions are reported as increases in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets
depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets.

Contributed Services

During the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, the value of contributed services relating to printing,
community education, direct training and professional fecs were $113,579 and $169,539, respectively.
Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted
support depending on the existence or nature of any donor restrictions.

In addition, many individuals volunteer their time and time and perform a varicty of tasks that assist the
Coalition, thesc amounts have not been recognized in the accompanying statement of activities because the
criterion for recognition of such volunteer effort is that services must be specialized skills, which would be
purchased if not donated.

Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.




New IIampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

Allocation of Expenses

The Coalition allocates expenses among program services, management and general, and fundraising based
on direct costs and other factors, including space utilization and time.

Property and Equipment

It is the Coalition’s policy to capitalize property and equipment over $500 and all expenditures for repairs,

maintenance, renewals and betterments that prolong the useful lives of assets. Lesser amounts are expensed.

Purchased property and equipment is capitalized at cost. Donations of property and equipment are recorded
as contributions at their estimated fair value. Such donations are reported as unrestricted contributions
unless the donor as restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit
restrictions regarding their usc and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and
equipment are reported as restricted contributions. Absent donor stipulations regarding how long those
donated assets must be maintained, the Coalition reports expiration of donor restrictions when the donated
or acquired assets are placed in service as instructed by the donor. The Coalition reclassifies temporarily
restricted net assets to unrestricted net asscts at that time. Property and equipment are depreciated using the
straight-line method. The ranges of useful lives are as follows:

Building and Improvements 39 Years
Equipment 3-7 Years

Depreciation expense recorded by the Coalition for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $12,648
and $15,608, respectively.

Income Taxes
The Coalition is a not-for-profit corporation under Section 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code, is
exempt from federal income taxes, and is classified as other than a private foundation. In addition, the

Coalition qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction under Section 170(b)(1)(A).

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, the Coalition considers all highly liquid investments (short-
term investments such as certificates of deposits and money market accounts) with an initial maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents. There were no cash equivalents as of June 30, 2014 and 2013,

Segregation of Accounts

Under Title 1, New Hampshire, The State and Its Government, Chapter 15 Lobbyist Section 15:1-a, the
Coalition is required to physically and financially separate state funds from any non-state funds that may be
used for the purposes of lobby or attempt to influence legislations, participate in political activity, or
contribute funds to any entity engaged in these activities. The Coalition has established and maintains a
separate bank account for this purpose. The account balanccs were $3,019 and $448 at June 30, 2014 and
2013, respectively.

-10-



New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

NOTE B — RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets consist of funds received by the Organization, restricted as to use or time.
The restrictions are considered to expire when payments are made. As of June 30, 2014 and 2013
respectively, the temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purpose:

2014 2013

NH Charitable Foundation Development $ - $ 12,581
Allstatc - 1,251
Verizon Translation 6,803 9,520
Verizon Training Capacity & Building 4,763 5,000
Verizon Trauma 9,236 -
Women Fund, SANE 10,000 -
Endowment for ITealth Child Trauma Fund 29,944 8.99

Total $ 60,746 $ 37,344

NOTE C - LONG-TERM NOTES

As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, long-term debt consists of the following:

2014 2013

Mortgage Note, Payable to Merrimack
County Savings Bank, Interest at 4.99%,
with Monthly Payments of $675 including
Principal and Interest, Maturity date is
October 8, 2023. Secured by Real Property $ 60,333 $ 65,194
Less Current Portion 5,206 4,690

Total Long Term Debt $ 55,127 $ 60,504

Future scheduled maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

Years ending June 30:

2015 $ 5206
2016 5,473
2017 5,751
2018 6,046
2019 6,354
Thereafter 31,503

Total $ 60,333

NOTE D - LINE OF CREDIT

The Coalition has a one-year $150,000 revolving line of credit agreement with Merrimack County Savings
Bank. The credit line matures on December 31, 2014 and automatically renews annually. The interest is
0.5% over Wall Street Journal prime rate, which was 3.75% as of June 30, 2014. The line of credit is
secured by all business assets. There were no borrowings against the line as of June 30, 2014 and 2013.
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

NOTE E — CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Coalition maintains cash balances in several accounts at a local bank. These accounts are insured by
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At June 30, 2014 and 2013 the Organization
had $91,408 and $101,144 uninsured cash balances, respectively.

NOTE F - DESCRIPTION OF LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

The Coalition presently leases office equipment under short-term operating lease agreements.

NOTE G -~ PENSION PLAN

The Coalition has a 403(b) savings plan for the benefit of its employees. The plan covers substantially all
employees after one year of service. During their budgeting process, the Board of Directors determines the
amount to be contributed annually. Employer contributions for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
totaled $3,889 and $6,7635, respectively.

NOTE H - TAX KEXEMPT STATUS

The Coalition is a public charity exempt from Federal income tax under Section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The Coalition does not believe it has done anything during the past year that would
jeopardize its tax exempt status at either the state or Federal level. The Coalition reports its activities to the
IRS in an annual information return. These filings are subject to review by the taxing authorities and the
federal income tax returns for 2013, 2012, and 2011 are subject to examination by the IRS, generally for
three years after they were filed.

In accordance with FASB ASC 740-10, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, the Coalition is under
the opinion that there are no unsustainable positions that have been taken in regards to federal or state
income tax reporting requirements. Accordingly, management is not aware of any unrecognized tax benefits
or liabilities that should be recognized in the accompanying statements.

NOTE I - SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Management has evaluated subsequent events through September 5, 2014, the date on which the financial
statements were available to be issued to determine if any are of such significance to require disclosure. It
has been determined that no subsequent events matching this criterion occurred during this period.

NOTE J - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

In accordance with FASB ASC 820, Fuir Value Measurements and Disclosures, the Coalition is required to
disclose certain information about its financial assets and liabilities. As of June 30, 2014 and 2013 the
Organization had no financial instruments subject to the disclosure requirements. Cash and cash
equivalents, grants receivable, investments, accounts payable and accrued expenses reported in the
statement of financial position approximate fair values because of the short maturities of those instruments
or because of the fixed rate of interest required to be paid.
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ROWLEY & ASSOCIATES, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

6A HILLS AVENUE
CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301
MEMBER TELEPHONE (603) 228-5400
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF FAX#(603)226-3532 MEMBER OF THE PRIVATE
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS COMPANIES PRACTICE SECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalition

Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Concord, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise Ncw Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence’s basic
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 5, 2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of New ITampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by thosc charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be malterial
wealnesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesscs
may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether New Hampshirc Coalition Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts,
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, wc do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance, This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

ol il P

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
September 5, 2014
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ROWLEY & ASSOCIATES, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

6A HILLS AVENUE
CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301
MEMBER TELEPHONE (603) 228-5400
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF FAX#(603)226-3532 MEMBER OF THE PRIVATE
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS COMPANIES PRACTICE SECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalition

Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Concord, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Award Program

We have audited New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence’s compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2014. New I[Tampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of New IHampshire Coalition Against i
Domestic and Sexual Violence’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance '
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing

standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits

contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and

OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards

and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a

direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,

evidence about New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of New Hampshire Coalition Against !
Domestic and Sexual Violence’s compliance. i

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence complied, in all material
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2014.
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance |

Management of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered New
Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence’s internal control over compliance with the
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
elfectiveness of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence’s internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first E
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over ‘
compliance that might be material weakncsscs or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any

deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,

material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB
Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

foaoly e Ao, P

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
September 5, 2014 |
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Summary of Findings and Question Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2014

SECTION I — SUMMARY O¥F AUDITOR’S RESULTS

1. The auditor’s report expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial statements of the New ITampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence.

2. No reportable conditions relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the Independent
Auditor’s Report.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence, which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal award programs are reported in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance With Requirements That Could Have a Direct and Material
Effect on Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance With OMB
Circular A-133.

5. The auditor’s report on compliance for the major federal award programs for New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence expresses an unqualified opinion on all major federal programs,

6. Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133
are reported in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as a major programs were:

Family Violence Prevention Service Act 93.671
Victims of Crime Act 16.575
Violence Against Women Act 16.588
AmeriCorps Victim Assist Program 94.006

8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B Programs was: $300,000.

9. The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence was determined to be a low-risk
auditee.

SECTION II — FINDINGS: FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

No matters were reported.

SECTION IIT ~ FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS: FEDERAIL AWARD PROGRAMS
AUDIT

No matters were reported.
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Federal Pass-Through
CFDA  Entity Identifying Federal

Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Direct Programs:
Family Violence Prevention Services Act 93.591 56,072
Family Violence Prevention Services Act 93.591 161,726
Family Violence Prevention Services Act 93.671 12,044
Total Direct Programs 229 842
Pass-Through Programs from State of NH Department of HHS
Family Violence Prevention Services Act 93.671 155510 B0OO1 796,514
Sexual Violence Prevention 93.991 102-500731 168,938
Total Pass-Through Programs 965,452
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES ___M
U.S. Department of Justice:
Direct Program - Violence Against Woman Act of 2000 16.588 190,262
Pass-Through Programs from State of NH Department of Justice:
Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) 16.575 20140010 1,028,064
Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) 16.575 2013010 47,607
VOCA, Training 16.575 20140010 4,867
VOCA, Training 16.575 2013010 14,489
VOCA, Addtl Training 16.575 20140010 12,250
VOCA, Addtl Training 16.575 2013010 12,004
VOCA, Technology & Foundation Project 16.575 20140010 68,300
VAWA, SASP 16.017 2013SASPO1 202,927
VAWA, SASP 16.017 2014SASPO1 14,114
VAWA, Sexual Assault Examiner 16.588 2014W091 15,647
VAWA, Sexual Assault Examiner 16.588 2013W091 11,636
VAWA, DHHS Trainer 16.588 2013W090 5,148
VAWA, DHHS Trainer 16.588 2014W090 11,746
VAWA, Enhancing Sexual Assault Victim Services 16.588 2014W081 32,938
VAWA, Enhancing Sexual Assault Victim Services 16.588 2013W081 35,157
Total Pass-Through Programs 1,516,894
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 1,707,156
Corporation for National & Community Services:
Direct Program - AmeriCorps Victim Assist Program 94.006 349,858
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDRAL AWARDS $ 3,252,308
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Notes to schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2014

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant
activity of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence under programs of the federal
government for the year ended June 30, 2014. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance
with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of New Hampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence, it is not intended to and does not present the financial
position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence.

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule arc reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures
are recognized following the cost principles contained in OMB Circular A-122, Cost Principles for Non-
profit Organizations, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to
reimbursement.

NOTE C - SUBRECIPIENTS

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence provide federal awards to
subrecipients as follows:

Program Title Federal CFDA # Amount Provided
Family Violence Prevention Services Act 93.671 § 796,514
Sexual Violence Prevention 93.991 168,938
Violence Against Women 16.588 68,095
Sexual Assault Services Program 16.017 217,041
Victims of Crime Act 16.575 1,028.064
$2,278,652
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P.O. Box 353

Concord, NH 03302-0353
Phone: (603)-224-8893
fax: (603)-228-6096
www.nhcadsv.org
www.reachoutnh.com

Statewide Toll Free Hotlines
Domestic Violence:
1-866-644-3574

Sexual Assault:
1-800-277-5570

MEMBERS:

RESPONSE to Sexual
& Domestic Violence
Berlin

Colebrook

Lancaster

Turning Points Network
Claremont
Newport

Crisis Center of Central
New Hampshire
Concord

Starting Point
Conway
Ossipee

Sexual Harassment and Rape
Prevention Program (SHARPP)
University of New Hampshire
Durham

Monadnock Center for
Violence Prevention
Keene

Jaffrey

Peterborough

New Beginnings Without
Violence and Abuse
Laconia

WISE
Lebanon

The Support Center at Burch House
Littleton

YWCA Crisis Service
Manchester

Bridges: Domestic & Sexual
Violence Support

Nashua

Milford

Voices Against Violence
Plvmouth

A Safe Place
Portsmouth
Rochester
Salem

Sexual Assault Support Services
Portsmouth
Rochester

HAMPSH
o 1/

COALITIOY,

AGAINST DOMESTIC
AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE

Current Board Member Terms*

Election to | Re-election Term
Board Member Board to Board Expires
Indelicato, Suzette 5/2012 5/2015
Beaudet, Jennifer Turco 5/2012 10/2015
Garon, Elizabeth 5/2009 5/2012 10/2015
Reams, Dawn 10/2012 10/2015
Magoon, Linda 2/2013 2/2016
Newell, Jo Fonda 10/2013 10/2016
ONeil, Peggy 10/2013 1072016
Paris, Eulalie 05/2014 05/2017
Bakis, Gail 05/2014 05/2017 |
Harvey, Suzanne 10/2011 10/2014 10/2017
Barraford, Krysta 1072014 10/2017
Officers™*
Election to Term

Position Board Member Position Expires*
Chair Garon, Elizabeth 10/2014 10/2015
Vice Chair | Reams, Dawn 10/2014 10/2015
Treasurer Magoon, Linda 10/2014 10/2015
Clerk Beaudet, Jennifer Turco 10/2014 10/2015

* A member’s term begins with first meeting following election to the board and expires at the

close of the monthly meeting in the month indicated.

** An officer’s term ends at the close of the annual meeting in the year indicated.

Updated January 22, 2015



Lyn M. Schollett
PO Box 353
Concord, NH 03301
603-224-8893

lyn@nhcadsv.org
CAREER SYNOPSIS

Seasoned sexual assault coalition General Counsel

* In-depth knowledge of anti-rape movement and direct services of rape crisis centers and domestic violence shelters.
Provide technical assistance to ICASA member rape crisis programs on legal issues and statewide rape crisis service
standards. _

e Familiarity with funding opportunities and challenges facing state coalitions, as well as role of coalition as a pass-
through organization.

e Coordinate drafting and filing of amicus briefs on issues including statute of limitations and application of the rape
shield law. Assist centers’ pro bono counsel to protect the privacy of victims’ records.

Experienced public policy advocate

e Drafted and successfully advocated for the passage of more than 50 significant policy changes impacting rape victims
in lllinois in the past 16 years. Initiatives include expanding the healthcare and privacy rights of victims with
disabilities, implementing a strip club tax to fund rape crisis centers, creating a statutory foundation for the state’s first
pilot SANE programs and implementing criminal consequences and healthcare standards related to drug-facilitated
sexual assault.

e Represented the sexual assault community in drafting portions of the 2013 Violence Against Women Act.

Highly skilled communicator

s Train Sexual Assault Nurse Examiners, prosecutors, law enforcement, and judges on topics including sexual violence,
criminal and civil procedure, rape crisis center staff as expert witnesses, confidentiality and health care for victims.
Mentor sexual assault coalition attorneys throughout the country.

¢ Skilled at crafting and delivering media messages and advocating with state agency and elected officials.

Accomplished non-profit manager

¢ Legal counsel to 32-member ICASA board, which utilizes consensus decision-making.

e Through elected leadership positions on local, regional and national governing bodies for Planned Parenthood, actively
pursued the sustainability of a national network of women’s health centers. Successfully implemented governance
reformulation for national board. Spearheaded membership adoption of nationa! core healthcare services for all
Planned Parenthood affiliates in the United States.

Efficient and effective manager

e Adept at managing complex projects including strategically conceptualizing the overall structure for a project,
supervising diverse groups of individuals, identifying and assigning tasks, setting deadlines and insuring high quality
work product.

e Supervise the Sexual Assault Justice Project, one of the fist sexual-assault specific legal clinics in the country.

EMPLOYMENT

2013-Present NH Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence Concord, NH
Direct and lead a statewide organization that is a national leader in the movement to end
violence against women. Effectively supervise staff in their function to provide funding, training,
technical assistar?ce, public policy advocacy, community outreach and development, and forums
for resource sharing and networking of the NHCADSV in line with its mission, strategic plan and

community needs.




1996 to
2013

2005 to
2006

1994 to0 1996
and summer
of 1992

1993 to 1994

lllinois Coalition Against Sexual Assault Springfield, IL
General Counsel for statewide coalition of 32 sexual assault centers. Advise board on governance
and non-profit matters. Provide technical assistance to member programs on wide range of legal
issues impacting the provision of rape crisis services. Train and advise representatives of the
criminal justice system. Represent coalition to elected officials, statewide stakeholders and
media.

Southern Illinois University School of Medicine Springfield, iL
Adjunct Faculty

Taught Studies in Medical-Legal Aspects of Obstetrics and Gynecology course to MD/JD joint
degree students.

Sachnoff & Weaver, Ltd. Chicago, IL
Associate, Litigation Department

Drafted motions and trial briefs and presented appellate oral argument in securities fraud case;
defended case-dispositive motions; prepared discovery; defended and took depositions; tried
commercial leasing case; drafted articles regarding sexual harassment for client advisory
newsletter; investigated and resolved potential conflicts of interest for law firm.

The Honorable Harold A. Baker, U.S. District Court, C.D. Ill. Danwville, IL
Law Clerk

Conducted legal research and drafted bench memoranda in preparation for hearings

and trials; drafted legal opinions.

VOLUNTEER LEADERSHIP

2006 - 2012

2008 - 2012

1587-2003

1997 - present

EDUCATION

1.D., 1993

B.Ph., 1989

Planned Parenthood Federation of America

Member and Officer, Board of Directors

Assumed wide range of volunteer leadership roles for national reproductive health care
organization, including strategic planning for service provision, reformulating board
governance structure, spearheading membership adoption of core service standards for all
affiliates, grassroots leadership development and political advocacy related to women's

_ health. Served as vice chair for three years.

Planned Parenthood of lllinois
Member, Board of Directors

Planned Parenthood, Springfield Area

Member, Board of Directors

Engaged in strategic planning, fundraising and direction for reproductive health clinic.
Chaired committee to open new self-sustaining clinic. Served as board chair.

Springfield Bicycle Club
Volunteer and Board Member. Organize and lead cycling events for riders of all ages and
experience levels; advocate for funding and public policies to support safe cycling.

Northwestern University School of Law Chicago, IL
Juris Doctor

Miami University Oxford, OH
Bachelor of Philosophy in Constitutional Law and Women's Issues




Shanna Beckwith
NHCADSV
PO Box 353
Concord, NH 03302
(603) 224-8893

shannaignhcadsy.org

EDUCATION

University of New Hampshire School of L.aw, Concord, NI1
Juris Doctor, 2012
Admitted to NH state and federal bar: Nov. 2012

Franklin Pierce University (formerly Franklin Pierce College), Rindge, NH
Bachelor of Arts Psychology, 3.6 GPA, 2001

EXPERIENCE
June 2013-  New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence, Concord, NH
Present Program Director
s Develop, implement, and direct statewide programs and projects of NHCADSV
» Recruit, manage and evaluate program staff
» Participate in the NHCADSV Leadership Team
s  Work with the Executive Director and the Leadership Team to secure funding for
existing statewide programs
= Develop and implement new programs and special projects
= Manage statewide training and technical assistance activities of NHCADSV
»  Direct implementation of Program Standards and Compliance Monitoring
*  Work with member programs to optimize programming, technical assistance and
resource opportunities and keep all stakeholders informed of relevant activities of the
programs
» Serve on statewide committees and advisory boards to improve multi-disciplinary
responses to sexual violence, domestic violence and stalking
* Direct the statewide prevention initiatives of NHCADSV
* Develop and implement evaluation methods for statewide programs and special projects
Jan. 2013-  New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Claremont, NI1
June 2013 Attorney, UNH Fellowship awardee
= Represented survivors of domestic violence in divorce and parenting cases
* Represented survivors of domestic violence in final domestic violence restraining order
hearings
*  Provided survivors of domestic violence with unbundled legal services and advice
* Drafted documents and performed legal research
s Represented clients in public housing eviction cases
Jan. 2012- Keene Police Department, Keene, NH
April 2012 Legal Intern, Keene Police Prosecutor

* Performed research.

* Drafted various motions.

* Conducted probable cause hearings.

* Litigated misdemeanor claims in court.



June 2011-
Dec. 2011

2002-2009

Aug. 2001-
May 2002

Observed numerous arraignments, sentencing hearings and review hearings.

New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Claremont, NH
Legal Intern, Public Interest Coalition (PIC) Fellowship awardee

Clerked for the Director of the Domestic Violence Assistance Program in civil family law
cases.

Performed research and consultation.

Drafted documents, including interrogatories and motions.

Interviewed clients and assisted with completing other court documents.

Monadnock Center for Violence Prevention, Keene, NH
Direct Services Coordinator

Supervised and provided 24 hour crisis intervention services to victims of domestic and
sexual violence, including court advocacy.

Assisted in maintenance of local DOVE attorney panel.

Developed and maintained positive working relationships with courts, attomeys, law
enforcement, legal service programs and local social service agencies.

Supervised 5-6 staff advocates and 20 volunteer advocates.

Taught bi-annual, 45-hour training program.

Implemented required program standards and provided data entry for the victim statistical
database.

Monadnock Center for Violence Prevention, Keene, NH
Domestic Violence Program Specialist

Worked as a liaison with the Division of Children, Youth and Families (DCYF) on cases
involving domestic violence and child abuse and neglect.

Provided information and education to CPSW’s on domestic violence.

Facilitated an educational support group for non-offending parents on the effects of
domestic violence on children.

Provided crisis intervention services to victims of domestic and sexual violence.



Pamela English

Work contact: NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence, PO Box 353, Concord, NH 03302
Telephone: 603-224-8893 Facsimile: 603-228-6096

Accomplishments

. Twenty years of experience in the areas of administration, finance and human resources.

. Effective problem solver and critical thinker.

. Wrote grants and managed over twenty five federal state and private grants or contracts.
Flawlessly manages multiple and simultaneous tasks and deadlines with strong attention to detail.

. Responsible for clean audits with a low risk auditee profile.

. Managed conversion to Fund Accounting system.

. Growth-inspiring leader; adept at conflict management and team coaching.

Professional Experience

Administrative Director - New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence, Concord,
NH = 2006 ~ Present

. Financial Management: budgeting and financial statement preparation.
. Policy development

. Human Resources Management: supervise four employee positions. Specify and identify ways to
increase productivity in the workplace.

. Organizational Development.
. Facilities Management.

. Manage information technology systems. National webinar development. Statewide database project
management.

. Continue to assume duties of Business and Grants Manager position.

Business and Grants Manager -~ New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence,
Concord, NH = 1995 — 2006

. Maintained financial records, payroll and employee benefits.
. Managed state and federal funding programs
. Created financial reports and chart of accounts.
Administrative Assistant - New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence, Concord,
NH_+ 1993-1995
. Insured compliance with state and federal reporting requirements: 941, state UC, W-2 and 1099’s.
. Maintained accurate financial records using full charge computerized bookkeeping system.
Provided administrative support to three people.

Self Employed Child Care Provider — Concord, NH » 1988 - 1993
Legal Secretary, Concord, NH = 1985 - 1988

. Daniel D. Crean, Esquire and Charles H. Morang, Esquire: Municipal and Business Law Practices
. Robert K. Mekeel, Esquire: Labor, Criminal, Worker's Compensation and General Law Practice



Computer Experience and Software Skills

SAGE MIP Fund Accounting; Microsoft Office 2010 - proficient in Word, Excel, Outiook; working
knowledge of PowerPoint; ACCESS database management; business analytics.

Community Activities

2008-present  Northwood Congregational Church, council member; Chair of Fundraising Committee;
Sanctuary Preservation Committee; Christian Education Committee, Sunday School Teacher
2002-2009 Northwood Elementary School PTA, President for 2003/2005 school years

1990-2002 Dewey/Kimball School PTA

1983-1984 President, Merrimack County Legal Secretaries Association

Skills

Working knowledge of federal and state grant compliance requirements; specific knowledge of Title 45 of
the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) particularly 45 CFR Parts 92 and 93; OMB Circular 2 CFR 225,
OMB Circular A-133 and Single Audit Act of 1984

Working knowledge of computer management/information technology

Experienced in NH employment iaw, regulations and rules

Presentation skills

Conflict management

Positive problem solving

Change management

Education

Selected Accounting and Management Courses — NH Technical institute, Concord, NH
Legal Secretarial Degree Il - Marritt Davis Business College, Eugene, OR

Awards

Walter J. Dunfey Excellence in Nonprofit Management 2010, awarded to NH Coalition Against Domestic
and Sexual Violence



ALLISON POWER-BERNAL, M.P.H.

SUMMARY
Six years of experience in program design, training, evaluation, grant management, communications, and advocacy in
sexual violence prevention, refugee health, HIV prevention, adolescent health, and anti-human trafficking

EXPERIENCE

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence Concord, NH

Prevention Coordinator, February 2015-present

» Implementation of sexual violence prevention strategies at the member program level and provision of technical
assistance on best practices the implementation of these prevention strategies

» Building prevention programming evaluation infrastructure and capacity

U.S. Committee for Refugees and Immigrants Arlington, VA
Refugee Services Division — Fall, 2014

= Writing newsletters, creating promotional materials highlighting work of 30 resettlement sites

* [nterviewed social workers for training on best practices for DV response in refugee resettlement

Polaris Project Washington, D.C.
Fellow, Global Human Trafficking Hotlines Network, Fall 2013

= Supported hotline expansion, wrote country and Congressional briefings, supported meetings with foreign delegations
* Assisted in development of employment and college readiness curriculum for trafficking survivors

Association of Maternal and Child Health Programs Washington, D.C.
Graduate Intern, Spring 2013
» Supported the Adolescent Health Team on technical assistance for member organizations and social media projects on
best practices for adolescent positive development and reproductive and sexual health

JS| Boston, MA
Project Associate, July 2008 — June 2013

Quality management, evaluation, technical assistance, research, and business development and budgeting

State and local projects:

» HIV Quality Management: Boston Public Health Commission Client Outcomes Monitoring; Rhode Island HIV
Prevention: Point-person for database training and technical assistance for HIV prevention and testing, HIV primary
care, domestic violence, needle exchange, and sex worker health providers; Assisted in quality management reporting
and presentation to state Evaluation Committee; Integrated federal and state reporting requirements into local data
collection systems for HIV counseling and partner referral programs

» Sexuality Education Research and Policy — MDPH: Utilized networks of educators to coordinate six focus groups with
teens and parents on attitudes and beliefs regarding sexuality education in public school; Developed policy
recommendations and presented to MA policymakers

County projects:

* Montgomery County, Maryland Health Center Leadership Council: Supported safety-net, refugee, and immigrant
health clinic Executive Directors in improving access to care for uninsured county residents; conducted research on
implications of the ACA and immigration policy, drafted advocacy memos and budget.

»  Childhood Healthy Weight Initiative Evaluation — GRHF: Supported evaluation activities including coordinating data
collection and submission, and stakeholder interview analysis

Federal projects:

* Hospital Preparedness Program and Public Health Emergency Preparedness - CDC: Coordinated regional meetings of
Federal and state hospital and emergency preparedness officials to align funding, capabilities, and processes

* Refugee Health Technical Assistance Center - MDPH Refugee and Immigrant Health Program and DHHS Office of
Refugee Resettlement: Tracked technical assistance communications with U.S. refugee resettlement providers;
Supported website design and content development; Coordinated technical aspects of RHTAC
e-learning webinars and related website content; attended national refugee resettlement conferences; Managed
financial incentives for CDC EPI-AID study on mental health outcomes

* HIV Medication Adherence: Every Dose Every Day E-Learning Module - CDC: Production assistant on e-course and
intervention materials for Peer Support Adherence Program; support mobile app design




ALLISON POWER-BERNAL, M.P.H.

OTHER EXPERIENCE

= Capital Area Immigrants’ Rights Coalition -Volunteer, Legal hotline, Spring 2014
* American Red Cross Global Refugee Simulation - Participant, March 2014
* Pediatric AIDS Treatment Support (PATS Kids) — Volunteer, October 2011 — February 2013
o Program monitoring and evaluation support {database development and analysis) site visit to Fuyang, China,
fundraising events, volunteer coordination, social media promotion
* New Hampshire Public Health Association — Public health policy student researcher, 2007

EDUCATION

The George Washington University, Milken Institute School of Public Health Washington, D.C.

Master of Public Health, Health Promotion, Dept. of Prevention and Community Health - December 2014

Coursework: Program funding and design, evaluation, research methods, communications and marketing

Relevant projects:

= Master’s Advocacy Project: Cover All Her Health — Advocating for access to contraception for all women through policy
advocacy, negotiation, and social media strategies

* Master’s thesis: Typology of coercive sexual relationships in Ghana: Power disparities and sexual violence

The Elliott School of International Affairs Washington, D.C.
. Participatory Planning for Community Development
= Care of Children in Complex Humanitarian Emergencies

GWU Short-term Study Abroad: Social Entrepreneurship Cape Town, South Africa
Ll Studied innovative funding models for social services, environmental, and public health organizations
. Conducted household surveys in rural townships on HIV and sexual violence in rural and urban townships

University of New Hampshire, College of Health and Human Services Durham, NH

B.S. Health Management and Policy, Public Health Track, 2008
Coursework: Healthcare Finance, Policy, and Economics, Organizational behavior and management

AWARDS

= GWU Public Health Professionals Scholarship: Awarded to entering MPH candidates with significant prior work
experience who have demonstrated commitment to the public health profession.

= 2008 Recipient of Robin A. Gorsky Award. Given to the woman who demonstrates excellent academic performance
within the University of New Hampshire Health Management and Policy department, with particular interest in the
scientific aspects of health management and public health.



Contractor Name:

Name of Program:

KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services

NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Sexual Violence Prevention Services

BUDGET PERIOD: SFY 16
PERCENT PAID | AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS FROM THIS

NAME JOB TITLE SALARY CONTRACT CONTRACT
Lyn Schollett Executive Director $89,735 0.00% $0.00
Shanna Beckwith Program Director $56,243 0.00% $0.00
Pamela English Administrative Director $65,770 3.54% $2,325
Allison Power Prevention Coordinator $41,445 83.67% $34,677
$0 0.00% $0.00
$0 0.00% $0.00
TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed TotaliSalary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request) $37,002

BUDGET PERIOD: SFY 17
PERCENT PAID | AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS FROM THIS

NAME JOB TITLE SALARY CONTRACT CONTRACT
Lyn Schollett Executive Director $92,430 0.00% $0.00
Shanna Beckwith Program Director $57,930 0.00% $0.00
Pametla English Administrative Director $67,743 3.43% $2,325
Allison Power Prevention Coordinator $42,688 81.23% $34,677
$0 0.00% $0.00
$0 0.00% $0.00
TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request) $37,002
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES :\"ﬁ
29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301-6527 4 .// N\H DrvistoN ok s
603-271-4501 ’1-800-852-33,45 Ext. 4501 AN PUb‘_l c Heal‘h SCTYICCS‘

Nicholas A. Toumpas Fax: 603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

Comaisione %é approyed « F/;a/ / //(7L

José Thier Montero
Director

August 27, 2014

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan

and the Honorable Council
State House N WC?

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION | T ool QM‘A

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, to
exercise a sole source amendment to an agreement with New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic
and Sexual Violence Purchase Qrder # 1031528, Vendor # 155510-B001, PO Box 353, 4 South State
Street, Concord, NH 03302-0353, by increasing the Price Limitation by $125,235 from $337,876 to
$463,111 to provide additional sexual violence prevention services, effective the date of Governor and
Council approval through June 30, 2015. This agreement was originaily approved by Governor and
Council on June 19, 2013, Item #88.

Funds are available in the following account for SFY 2015, with authority to adjust
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, without further approval from
the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.

05-95-90-902010-5190 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY
SERVICES, MATERNAL AND CHILD HEALTH

Current | Increased | Revised

FYlsec:;I g:jjrft Class Title Job Number | Modified |(Decreased) | Modified
Budget Amount Budget

SFY 2014 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc | 90004008 138,938 0] 138,938 |
SFY 2014 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc | 90016006 30,000 0 30,000
Sub Total 168,938 0| 168,938
SFY 2015 | 102-500731 | Confracts for Prog Svc | 90004008 138,938 125,235 | 264,173
SFY 2015 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc | 90016006 30,000 0 30,000
i Sub Total 168,938 125,235 | 294,173

Total $337,876 $125,235 | $463,111




Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

August 27, 2014

Page 2

EXPLANATION

This is a sole source amendment request because the New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Violence is the only statewide organization providing sexual violence prevention and
intervention services. The organization is therefore the appropriate entity to provide the services
required in this cooperative agreement.

Funds in this amendment will be used to hire and maintain a full time Prevention Coordinator
position dedicated to prevention activities. This newly created position will oversee and manage sexual
violence prevention activities and subcontracts at the Coalition, attend annual Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention annual meetings, facilitate monthly Prevention Educators’ meetings, act as
Vice Chair of the Sexual Violence Prevention and Implementation Committee, provide technical
assistance on best practice sexual violence implementation strategies, direct statewide prevention
initiatives of the Coalition, and develop and implement evaluation methods for statewide programs and
special projects.

Sexual violence has far reaching impacts on the lives of victims, bystanders, and perpetrators.
Sexual violence includes sexual-harassment, sexual threats and intimidation, rape, attempted rape,
incest, sexual assault by intimate partners, child sexual abuse, sexual exploitation, sexual trafficking,
stalking, and other forms of unwelcome or coerced sexualized activity. However, sexual violence is
preventable.

In State Fiscal Year 2013, over 1,500 educational sessions on the primary prevention of sexual
violence took place with over 32,000 participants consisting of students of all ages. These sessions
were facilitated by prevention educators at the individual member programs /crisis centers of the New
Hampshire Coaliition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence. Of those sessions evaluated, there was
significant change in the understanding of consent and a willingness to act as an informed bystander.
in addition, 600 professionals were trained on best practice with respect to the prevention of sexual
violence. These professionals include teachers, law enforcement, and other first responders. The
majority of participants felt more competent in facilitating prevention strategies after the training. The
education sessions targeted to students and those targeted to professionals are evaluated to ensure
an overall better understanding of sexual violence prevention strategies.

In order to prove effectiveness, evaluation is an essential part of any prevention strategy. The
newly created Prevention Coordinator will provide much needed technical assistance in this area.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this Request, New Hampshire citizens
may not have the opportunity to take part in prevention activities. The impact could potentially increase
the incidence of sexual violence in the State.

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence was originally selected for
this project through a competitive bid process. A Request for Proposals was posted on The
Department of Health and Human Services’ web site from March 1, 2013 through April 5, 2013. In
response to the Request for Proposals, one proposal was submitted and evaluated by a team of three
reviewers. The proposal from the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
received a score of 95 out of 100 points and was selected. The Bid Summary is attached.



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

August 27, 2014
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As discussed previously, the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
have consistently evaluated their prevention programming, thereby fulfiling their performance
measures thus far.

The following performance measures will be used to measure the effectiveness of the
agreement.

1. 80% of primary sexual violence prevention programs targeted to students will be evaluated and
analyzed through post training surveys on changes in attitude and knowledge.

2. 80% of primary sexual violence prevention programs targeted to professionals will be evaluated
and analyzed through post training surveys on changes in confidence and competence in
facilitating sexual violence prevention strategies.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the United States Department of Heaith and
Human Services, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

@M ) G

José Thier Monterg, MD, MHCDS
Director

WIAT
Approved by: g

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in prociding opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to the
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

This 1* Amendment to the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence,
contract (hereinafter referred to as “Amendment One") dated thisz day of E“%EZ
2014, is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Muman
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor”"), a

corporation with a place of business at PO Box 353, 4 South State Street, Concord, New
Hampshire 03302-0353.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on June 19, 2013, the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based
upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of
certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the State may modify the scope
of work and the payment schedule of the contract by written agreement of the parties;

WHEREAS, the Department desires to continue the relationship with the New Hampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence agency to provide additional sexual violence
prevention services.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

To amend as follows:
e Form P-37, to change:
Block 1.8 to read: $463,111

e Exhibit A, Scope of Services to add:
Exhibit A — Amendment 1

+ Exhibit B, Purchase of Services, Contract Price, to add:
Paragraph 1.1 to Paragraph 1:
The contract price shall increase by $125,235 for SFY 2015 for a total increase of
$125,235.

Paragraph 1.2 to Paragraph 1:
Funding is available as follows:

CA/DHHS/100213 Contractor Initials:}%’n
Page 1 of 4 Date:




New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services

o $125,235 from 05-95-90—902010-5190-102—500731, 100% Federal Funds from the US
Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention,
CFDA #93.136, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN), UF2CE002431.

Delete Paragraph 6
Replace with: 8. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, an
amendment limited to adjustments to amounts between and among account numbers,

within the price limitation, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the Govermor and Executive Council.

e Budget, to add:
Exhibit B-1 (2015) - Amendment 1

o Exhibit C, Special Provisions:

o Delete Exhibit C, Special Provisions
o Replace with Exhibit C, Special Provisions, dated 06/27/14
o Add Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General Provisions

+ Exhibit G, Certification Regarding the Americans with Disabilities Act Compliance:
o Delete Exhibit G, Certification Regarding the Americans with Disabilities Act
Compliance
o Replace with Exhibit G, Certification of Compliance with Requirements Pertaining
to Federal Nondiscrimination, Equal Treatment of Faith-based Organizations and
Whistleblower Protection, dated 06/27/14

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

CA/DHHS/100213 Contractor Initials: ng
Page 2 of 4 Date:m



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the p'arties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

el 7o Diper

Date Brook Dupee
Bureau Chief

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence

52 -1# %ﬂu 7L,/<7L hol Lo c

Date Name: Lyn Scholitt
Title: Executive Director

Acknowledgement:

State OfMMv County of Y Weemea mac ¢ on ng . o oA, 2014 before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or satisfactorily proven to

be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this
document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

ARIN_ASTon) , Notary fubolic
Name and Title of Notary &r Justic the Peace
My Commission Expires: X/ ﬂh‘][ ;Ql =

CA/DHHS/100213 Contractor Initials: W'S

Page 3 of 4 Date:

31Ze Tl



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

a1y Al / v

Dat: N : Y
atg | Nam IX\II A Y

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

CA/DHHS/100213 Contractor Initials: \ '24' {
Page 4 of 4 Date:



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A -— Amendment #1
- SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. Required Services
The Contractor will provide additional sexual violence prevention services as follows:

1.

=

-—

Initiate and maintain a full time Prevention Coordinator position at the Coalition dedicated to
prevention activities. This newly created position will have oversight over the following duties:

» Act as liaison with the Injury Prevention Program Manager at Department of Health and
Human Services, Division of Public Health Services who manages the Rape Prevention
Education Grant with the Centers for Disease Control.

+ Attend annual Centers for Disease Contro! and Prevention grantee meeting with the Injury
Prevention Program Manager.

o Facilitate monthly Prevention Educators’ meetings.

o Act as Vice Chair of the Sexual Violence Prevention and Implementation Committee
(SVPPIC), which meets quarterly.

¢ Provide technical assistance on best practice sexual violence implementation strategies to
Member Programs.

e Direct the statewide prevention initiatives of the Coalition, including primary prevention.

¢ Develop and implement evaluation methods for statewide programs and special projects.

» Oversee evaluation subcontractor.

Oversee and manage the subcontract for evaluation services of all contracted and subcontracted
prevention activities consistent with the requirements of the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention grant.

Amend the existing subcontract for the development, implementation, evaluation and reporting of
primary sexual violence prevention programming statewide for professionals, youth, adolescents,
college students and the general public across the entire socio-ecological spectrum to add funding
to increase the number of hours dedicated to aforementioned activities.

. Compliance Requirements

As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for persons with Limited
English Proficiency, and resuiting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes
discrimination on the basis of Limited English Proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with the
Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,
the Contractor must submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they will
provide to persons with Limited English Proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their programs
and/or services, within 10 days of the contract effective date.

. Performance Measures

80% of primary sexual violence prevention programs targeted to students will be evaluated and
analyzed through post training surveys on changes in attitude and knowledge.

80% of primary sexual violence prevention programs targeted to professionals will be evaluated and
analyzed through post training 'surveys on changes in confidence and competence in facilitating
sexual violence prevention strategies.

Exhibit A — Amendment #1- Scope of Services Contractor Initials ns
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Exhibit B-1 (2015) - Amendment 1

Budget
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and
Bidder/Contractor Name: Sexual Violence
Budget Request for; Sexual Violence Prevention
(Name of RFP)
Budget Period: SFY 2015 (Date of G&C Approval - 06/30/2015)

1._Total Salary/Wages $ 31,70000] 8% $ 31,700.00

2. Employee Benefits $ 8,196.00] 3 - $ 8,196.00

3. Consuitants $ - $ - $ -

4. Equipment: $ - $ - $ -
Rental 3 - $ - $ -
Repair and Maintenance $ - $ - $ -
Purchase/Depreciation $ - $ - $ -

5. Supplies: $ - $ - $ -
Educational $ - 3 - 3 -
Lab 3 - $ - $ -
Pharmacy $ - $ - $ -
Medical $ - $ - $ -
Office 3 580.00] % - 3 580.00

6. Travel $ 1,065.00 | $ - $ 1,065.00

7. Occupancy $ 870.00] % - $ 870.00

8. Current Expenses $ - $ - $ -
Telephone $ 550.00 1% - $ 550.00
Postage $ 260.001$ - $ 260.00
Subscriptions $ - |3 - $ -
Audit and Legal 3 620.00 1% - $ 620.00
Insurance 1$ 640.00 | $ - $ 640.00
Board Expenses $ - $ - $ -

9. Software 1% - $ - 3 -

10. Marketing/Communications 3 280.00} 8 - $ 280.00

11. Staff Education and Training 3 - $ - $ -

12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ 79494.001% - $ 79,494.00

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ 980.0019% - $ 980.00

Maintenance and repairs of computers,

snow plowing and office cleaning 3 - $ - ? -

) - $ - 3 -
TOTAL $ 12523500 | $ - $ 125,235.00 |

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0%

NH DHHS

Exhibit B-1 - (2015) Amendment 1 Contractor Initials: LY} €

October 2013
Page 1 of 1 Date: __§ !lli !M’




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials U’Y\
0612714 Page 10f 5 pate 8 [20)1£



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time dunng the petiod of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8.

10.

Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor

covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for matenals, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. Itis recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations™ and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an

exception.

Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased servnces hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his

attomey or guardian.
Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials S lzb J If
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C

1.

12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

08127114 Page 3 of 5 pate_$ |20 J14

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shalt impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. in connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Pian (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardiess of the amount of the award, the recipient wiil provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistieblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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19.4.  Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled “"Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean ali such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promuigated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials u ! 'S )
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as

follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder,
including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this Agreement are
contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any subsequent changes to the
appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that
reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement
and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In the event
of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right
to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce,
terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such
reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
source or account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number,
or any other account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the following
language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of the State,
30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its option to terminate the
Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination,
develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not
limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the Agreement
and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed information to

support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data requested by the
State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing
communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving services
under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity including
contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shail provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of
services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan submitted
to the State as described above.

3. Extension:
This agreement has the option for a potential extension of up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon
satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and

Council.

4. Insurance
Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the Genera! Provisions of this contract is deleted and the following subparagraph is

added:
14.1.1 Comprehensive general liability against all claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in
amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $1,000,000 per occurrence and umbrelia
excess liability coverage in the amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence.
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federa! funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disabiiity, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 {42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs), 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 {Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federat grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False gertification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

in the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
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against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

New Hampshire Coalition Against
Contractor Name: Domestic and Sexual Violence

%/20/'4 YAV /dbw

Date ' Name: Lyn Schollett /
Title:  Executive Director

The Americans With Disabilities Act Compliance

Exhibit G — Certification Regarding Contractor Initials Q [}S
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES N
29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301-6527 o lic Hoalth <
603-271-4517  1-800-852-B345 Ext. 4517 S Public Health Services

Nicholas A. Toumpas Fax: 603-271-4519 TDD Acce s:;-1-800-735-2964 d é

Commissioner ! %’ C WY 2 [ q / / 3
José Thier Montero :

Director :

June 3, 2013

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan

and the Honorable Council ' o
State House : / OW
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 " Z w

b
;
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Sei'vices, Division of Public Health Services, Bureau of
Population Health and Community Services, Maternal and Child Health Section, to enter into an agreement with
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual ’Violence (Vendor #155510-B001), PO Box 353, 4
South State Street, Concord, New Hampshire 03302-035] *m an amount not to exceed $337,876.00, to provide
sexual violence prevention services, to be effective July I 2013 or date of Governor and Executive Council
approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2015. i

3
1

Funds are anticipated to be available in SFY 20014 and SFY 2015 upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, wit. jimthority to adjust amounts within the price limitation
and amend the related terms of the contract without furth japproval from Governor and Executive Council.
05-95-90-902010-5190 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERV] ?ES DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POP ATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES,
MATERNAL AND CHILD HEALTH

Fiscal Year Class/Object Clhss Title Job Number Total Amount |
SFY 2014 | 102-500731 Contracts for:Prog Svc 90004008 $138,938.00ﬁ
' SFY 2014 | 102-500731 Contracts for;Prog Svc 90016006 $30,000.00
| - i Sub Total $168,938.00
| SFY 2015 [ 102-500731 Contracts for, Prog Sve 90004008 $138,938.00
SFY 2015 | 102-500731 : Contracts for;Prog Svc 90016006 $30,000.00
' % Sub-Total $168,938.00
Total $337,876.00 |
EXPLANATION
Funds in this agreement will be used to provide pfimary prevention activities for the reduction of sexual
violence in alignment with the goals of the Rape Preve mon and Education Program at the Centers for Disease
Control, Prevention, and the New Hampshire’s Sexual ¥ 1olence Prevention Plan. The goals of the Plan include

the facilitation of educational sessions to New Hampshire school and college age residents as well as targeted
trainings with professionals such as teachers and law en: rcement personnel. The goals also include the provision
of professional development in the field of sexual violen e prevention

[
i
i

| :
I
|
1
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Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

June 3, 2013

Page 2

Sexual violence has far reaching impacts on the lij

ICS of victims, bystanders, and perpetrators. Sexual

violence includes sexual harassment, sexual threats and intnmdatlon rape, attempted rape, incest, sexual assault

by intimate partners, child sexual abuse, sexual exploitati
unwelcome or coerced sexualized activity. Physical violence
or may not be present and are not necessary elements of s
upon power and control of the victim using sexual means.

m sexual trafficking, stalking, and other forms of
or contact other than the sexualized abuse itself may
exual violence. Sexual violence is commonly based

Both national and New Hampshire data support al focus on youth. Of all primary victims of sexual

violence served by local crisis centers in State Fiscal Year

2012, 62% were under the age of 25 and 21% were

between the ages of 13 and 17. Thus, the primary intent of t} 1é agreement is to provide, educational programming

with middle school through college age youth.

Sexual violence, including rape, is preventable. Reg
Women Act in 1994. This landmark legislation established
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. The goal of
strengthen sexual violence prevention efforts. It does this Y
Injury Prevention Program is the steward of these funds fo

ognizing this, Congress passed the Violence Against
the Rape Prevention and Education Program at the
the Rape Prevention and Education Program is to
y, providing funding to all states and territories. The
the state of New Hampshire. The Injury Prevention

Program has historically worked with the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence to
distribute the majority of these funds to their member pro a‘ins/crisis centers located throughout the state. The
Coalition does this through a funding mechanism based on opulatlon as well as the number of sexual violence
victims served.

In State Fiscal Year 2012, over 1,000 educational sgssions on the primary prevention of sexual violence
took place with over 24,000 participants consisting of stu ents of all ages. These sessions were facilitated by
prevention educators at the individual member programs|/crisis centers of the Coalition. Of those sessions
evaluated, there was significant change in the understandingof consent and a willingness to act as an informed
bystander. In addition, 600 professionals were trained on est practice with respect to the prevention of sexual
violence. These professionals include teachers, law enfor ement and other first responders. The majority of
participants felt more competent in facilitating prevention Uategles after the training. The education sessions
targeted to students and those targeted to professionals are valuated to ensure an overall better understanding of
sexual violence prevention strategies. The reduction of s tal violence is a long term process and difficult to
measure. Interim measures, such as a decrease on the Youth Risk Behavior Survey in affirmative answers to
sexual violence questions improves yearly.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authc I’lZC this Request, New Hampshire citizens may not
have the opportunity to take part in prevention activities. 'Ihe impact could potentially increase the incidence of
sexual violence in the State. i

New Hafnpshire Coalition Against Domestic and S¢ xual Violence was selected for this project through a
competitive bid process. A Request for Proposals was poste d on The Department of Health and Human Services’
web site from March 1, 2013 through April 5, 2013.

One agency responded to the Request for Proposalsf. This proposal was scored and reviewed by three
professionals who work inside the Division of Public Healﬁhf Services. The reviewers represent seasoned public
health administrators and program managers experienced| in contract and vendor management and women’s

health issues. Each reviewer was selected for the specific skill set they possess and their experience. Their




Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

June 3, 2013

Page 3

decision followed a thorough discussion of the strengths a d weaknesses of the proposal. The New Hampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence received [a:core of 95 out of 100 points. The Bid Summary is
attached. !

As referenced in the Request for Proposals, Rene éls Section, this competitively procured Agreement
has the option to renew for two (2) additional years, contitngent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Govemor and Executive Council.

The following performance measures will be used t fmeasure the effectiveness of the agreement.

e 80% of primary sexual violence prevention r{‘cj;grams targeted to students will be evaluated and
analyzed through post training surveys on changes in attitude and knowledge.

e 80% of primary sexual violence prevention pr éfam targeted to professionals will be evaluated and
analyzed through post training surveys on ¢ afnges in confidence and competence in facilitating
sexual violence prevention strategies. ‘

Area served: Statewide. ]

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Fund from the U téd States Department of Health and Human Services,
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. :

In the event that the Federal Funds become no 1011éer available, General Funds will not be requested to
support this program. 5

Respectfully submitted,

José Thier Montero, MD
Director

Approl 'ejd by: M AY “

o Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

|
‘ !
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The Department of Health and Human Servic%s'l‘Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.




Subject: Sexual Violence Prevention

AGRE

E

FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

MENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Coniactor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL P

1. IDENTIFICATION.

OVISIONS

1.1  State Agency Name

NH Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

1.2  State Agency Address

29 Hazen Drive
Concord, NH 03301-6504

1.3 Contractor Name

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence

1.4  Contractor Address
PO Box 353, 4 South State Street
Concord, New Hampshire 03302-0353

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6
Number
603-224-8893

Account Number
05-95-90-902010-5190-102-
500731

1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

June 30, 2015 $337,876

1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency

Lisa L. Bujno, MSN, APRN
Bureau Chief

1:10 State Agency Telephone Number

603-271-4501

1.11 Contractor Signature

Pt

1.12_ Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Roloin Chrstophesen,

1.13 /Acknowledgement: State of A/4# , County of Mygum

1.12.

C»L\a/rpe/sonréoan’»(.ﬂ”'Oz 3

On i“«‘ , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that $/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block

1.13.1 S/fg(nature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

[Seal]

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

Farin Ashdon  N/otang Pble

1.14 State Agency Signature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
OZ/{% %‘ Lisa L. Bujno, Bureau Chief
| 1.16  Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)
By: Director, On:
1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

| T KMerra
| By: anne P plcoy itk Ad arney

On: £ Hten. 203

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council

By:

Page 1,0f4




CONTRACT PERIOD: July 1, 2013 or date of G&C appro

CONTRACTOR NAME:

NH Department of Health a

Exhibit A

nd Human Services

Scope of Services

Sexual Violence Prevention

Violence
ADDRESS:

Administrative Director:
TELEPHONE:

Pamela English
603-224-8893

The Contractor shall:

A)

B)

0

D)

Standard Exhibits A - J

September 2009
Page 1.0£26

General Provisions

State and Federal Laws

The contractor is responsible for compliance w

yal, whichever is later, through June 30, 2015

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual

PO Box 353, 4 South State Street
Concord, New Hampshire 03302-0353

ith all relevant state and federal laws. Special attention

is called to the following statutory responsibilities:

1. Persons employed by the contractor shs
Hampshire RSA 169:C, Child Protection

RSA 631:6, Assault and Related Offences.
Relevant Policies and Guidelines
The contractor shall promulgate appropriate {
adequacy of work performed by subcontract

through quality reviews, monitor and provide s

Publications Funded Under Contract

1l comply with the reporting requirements of New
Act; RSA 161:F46, Protective Services to Adults and

policies and guidelines to ensure the consistency and
ed agencies and shall, through regular meetings and
ipport to the work of these agencies.

1. The Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) and/or its funders will retain
COPYRIGHT ownership for any and all”original materials produced with DHHS contract

funding, including, but not limited to, bn
posters, or reports.

ochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,

All documents (written, video, audio) produced, reproduced or purchased under the contract shall

have prior approval from Bureau of Child Health Services before printing, production,

2.
distribution, or use,.
3. The Contractor shall credit DHHS on all
instructions outlined in Exhibit C, 14.1.
Subcontractors

rflaterials produced under this contract following the

Services required to comply with this exhibit aré_ provided by subcontracted agencies. The Bureau of
Population Health & Community Services, Maternal and Child Health Section, must be notified in




writing of changes in the subcontract agencies that will deliver services. In addition, subcontractors
must be held responsible to fulfill all relevant requirements included in this exhibit.

IL Minimal Standards of Core Services

A) Service Requirements

The contractor shall carry out the work as described and submitted with the application for funding
and as approved by the Maternal and Child Health Section. Either party may amend the performance
work plan upon 30 days advance written notice to the other party with the other party’s approval.

The contractor shall perform the following services within the two-year grant period:

1.

Attend quarterly meetings of the Sexual Violence Prevention Planning and Implementation
Committee (SVPPIC) towards the goal of implementing the Sexual Violence Prevention Plan
(SVP Plan) along witli staff from the Maternal and Child Health Services (MCHS). This includes
assistance with the implementation of the SVP Plan.

Work with staff from the MCHS on the analysis of previously facilitated assessments to
determine state evaluation capacity. This will also include the development of an action plan and
assistance with the implementation of such plan as able to with current capacity and limitation in
funding,

Work with staff from the MCHS on the development of a Memorandum of Understanding
outlining roles and responsibilities in the implementation of Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention (CDC) grant activities.

Subcontract for the development, implementation, evaluation, and reporting of primary sexual
violence prevention programming statewide for professionals, youth, adolescents, college
students, and the general public, across the entire socio-ecological spectrum. This must include at
least one yearly example from every subcontractor of appropriate community mobilization efforts,
policy change, norms change, and coalition building with partners and key stakeholders.

Work with staff at MCHS to develop and implement an annual training in the Prevention Institute
as able to with current capacity and limitation in funding.

B) Coordination of Services

1.

The contractor shall coordinate, where possible, with other service providers within the state. Ata
minimumm, such collaboration shall include interagency teferrals, contractor participation in
interagency groups concerned with sexual violence and joint activities with other agencies as
appropriate.

As appropriate, the Contractor should participate in community needs assessments, public health
petformance assessments, and the development of regiondl public health improvement plans
through collaboration with the local Public Health Regions, as may be appropriate, to enhance the
implementation of community-based public health prevention initiatives being implemented by
the contractor.

The Contractor agrees to cooperate and coordinate public health activities as requesting by the
Division of Public Health during any local situation or condition, niatural or man-made, declared
by the DHHS to be a public health emergency. :

C) Meetings and Trainings

The contractor will be responsible to send staff to meetings and trainings as required by the program.
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OL  Quality or Performance Improvement (QI/PI)

A) Data and reporting requirements

The Contractor shall submit to MCHS the folld

1.

B) On-site reviews

1.

Standard Exhibits A —J
September 2009
Pace 3.af 26

Submit data and narrative as requested by

ywing data used to monitor program performance:

the MCHS at least 45 days prior to the submission of

federal grant applications and reports. These reports have been due January 31%(annual report)
and June 30™ (grant application) of every year, The MCHS shall notify the Contractor at least 30
days in advance of any changes in the submission schedule. Data shall include, but not be limited

to:

i

o Professional trainings including number, type, location, audience and results of any

evaluation conducted.

¢ Educational sessions including number, type, grade if student audience (preschool,
elementary, middle school, high school; and college), location, and results of any evaluation

conducted.

* Detailed information on any community mobilization, policy change, norms change and
coalition building applicable to sexual violence prevention.

In years when contracts or amendments

e not required, the Division of Public Health Services

(DPHS) Budget Form, Budget Justificati n Sources of Revenue and Program Staff list forms
must be completed according to the relev%aht instructions and submitted as requested by DPHS
and, at minimum, by April 30 of each year; .

The Sources of Revenue report must bei

resubmitted at any point when changes in revenue

threaten the ability of the agency to carry out the planned program.

The contractor shall allow a team or persoin authorized by the Maternal and Child Health Section

to periodically review the contractor’s sys

ems of governance, administration, data collection and

submission, programmatic, and financial management in order to assure systems are adequate to

provide the contracted services.

The contractor shall make corrective actions as advised by the review team if contracted services

are not found to be provided in accordance

The remainder of this page is i

with this exhibit.

n’Eentionally left blank
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit B

Purchase of Services
Contract Price

Sexual Violence Prevention

CONTRACT PERIOD: July 1, 2013 or date of G&C approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2015

1.

CONTRACTOR NAME: New Hampshire Coalition Against Dorestic and Sexual Violence

ADDRESS: PO Box 353, 4 South State Street
Concord, New Hampshire 03302-0353
Administrative Director: Pamela English
TELEPHONE: 603-224-8893

Vendor #155510-B001 Job #90016006  Appropriation #05-95-90-902010-5190-102-500731
#90004008

The total amount of all payments made to the Contractor for cost and expenses incurred in the performance of the
services during the period of the contract shall not exceed:

$60,000 for sexual violence prevention, funded from 100% federal funds from the United States Department of
Health and Human Services, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CFDA # 93.991).

$277,876 for sexual violence prevention, funded from 100% federal funds from the United States Department of
Health and Human Services, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CFDA # 93.136).

TOTAL: $337,876

2.

The Contractor agrees to use and apply all contract funds from the State for direct and indirect costs and expenses

including, but not limited to, personnel costs and operating expenses related to the Services, as detailed in the
attached budgets. Allowable costs and expenses shall be determined by the State in accordance with applicable
state and federal laws and regulations. The Contractor agrees not to use or apply such funds for capital additions
or improvements, entertainment costs, or any other costs not approved by the State.

This is a cost-reimbursement contract based on an approved budget for the contract period. Reimbursément shall
be made quarterly based on actual costs incurred diting the previous month.

Invoices shall be submitted by the Contractor to the State in a form satisfactory to the State for edch of the Service
category budgets. Said invoices shall be submitted within twenty (20) working days following the end of the
month during which the contract activities were completed, and the final invoice shall be due to the State no later
than sixty (60) days after the contract Completion Date. Said invoice shall contain a description of all allowable
costs and expenses incutred by the Contractor during the contract period.

Payment will be made by the State agency subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds
are available in the Service category budget line items submitted by the Contractor to cover the costs and
expenses incurred in the performances of the services.

The Contractor may amend the contract budget for any Service category through line item increases, decreases, or
the creation of new line items provided these amendments do not exceed the contract price for that particular
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Service category. Such amendments shall only be made upon written request to and written approval by the State.

Budget revisions will not be accepted after June 20" of each contract year.

State prior to using contract funds to purchase any

The Contractor shall have written authorization from the ,
p0) and with a useful life beyond one year.

equipment with a cost in excess of three hundred doliars ($3

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank
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NH Department of Heahh and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS
| v
1. Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor under
the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible individuals and, in the
furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor her'eby covenants and agrees as follows:

2. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If thé Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of
individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and state laws,
regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures. | '

3. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility cﬁetermma’uons shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remIde at such times as are prescribed by the Department.

4, Documentation: In addition to the determination forms, required by the Department, the Contractor shall
maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all information necessary to
support an eligibility determination and such other information as the Department requests. The Contractor shall
furnish the Department with all forms and documentation regardmg eligibility determinations that the Department
may request or require.

5. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all apphcants for services hereunder, as well as individuals
declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing reg '_ g that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants
and agrees that all applicants for services shall be pe itted to fill out an application form and that each applicant
or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

6. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or make a payment,
gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or the State in order to influence
the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this Contract. The State may terminate this
Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if : 1t is determined that payments, gratuities or offers of
employment of any kind were offered or received by any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor
or Sub-Contractor.

7. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any other
document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no payments
will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for ‘costs incurred for any purpose or for any services provided
to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred
by the Contractor for any services provided prior to thenE:te on which the individual applies for services or (except
as otherwise provided by the federal regulations) pnoq to a determination that the individual is eligible for such
services. ‘

8. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anythmg o the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the epanment to purchase services hereunder at a rate which
reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractor’s| costs, at a rate which exceeds the amounts reasonable and
necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a\ rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to
ineligible individuals or other third party fundors for sudh‘ service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or
after receipt of the Final Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has
used payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense. other than such costs, or has received payment in excess of
such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party fundors,
the Department may elect to:

8.1 Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;

!
i
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8.2 Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in excess of
costs;

8.3 Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make such
repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is permitted to determine the
eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to reimburse the Department for all funds paid by
the Department to the Contractor for services provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be
ineligible for such services at any time during the period of retention of records established herein. :

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

9.

11.

Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor covenants and
agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

9.1 Fiscal Records: Books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs and other
expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received or collected
by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are
acceptable to the Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,
valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

9.2 Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance, or visit records for each recipient of services
during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and eligibility (including all
forms required to determine eligibility for each recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such services.

9.3 Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the Contractor
shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

10. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within nine months after the close of the agency

fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non Profit Organizations”
and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Programs, Activities and Functions,
issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as they pertain to financial compliance audits.

10.1 Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their designated
representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of
audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

10.2 Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit
exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the Contract to which exception has
been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an exception.

Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected in
connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shatl not be disclosed by
the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of the Department regarding the
use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to public officials requiring such information in
connection with their official duties and for purposes directed connected to the administration of the services and
the Contract; and provided further, that the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient
for any purpose not directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor’s
responsibilities with respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the
recipient, his attorney or guardian.

Standard Exhibits A — J Contractor Initials: ﬂ,

September 2009
Page 7 of 26 Dae: S 773




Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained hergin the covenants and conditions contained in the Paragraph
shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

12. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agreesito submit the following reports at the following times if
requested by the Department

12.1 Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed deseription of all costs
and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contrac#ofr to the date of the report and containing such other
information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the D?pé.nment to justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such
Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form des gnated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the
Department,

12.2 Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within sixty (60) days after the end of the term of this
Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satlsfactory to the Department and shall contain a summary
statement of progress toward goals and objectives staﬁed in the Proposal and other information required by the
Department. ‘

13. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum number
of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the
obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obhgcmons as, by the terms of the Contract are to be performed
after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided
however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure eport the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed
by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of
such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

14. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, researih. reports, and other materials prepared during or resulting
from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following statement:

14.1 The preparation of this (report, document, etc.), was financed under a Contract with the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, with funds provided in
part or in whole by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or required,
e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities for providing
services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county and municipal
authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall i 1mpose an order or
duty upon the Contractor with respect to the operation! of the facility or the provision of the services at such
facility. If any government license or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply
with the terms and conditions of each such license or permlt In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during thie term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the Staqe ‘Office of the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection
agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and regulations.

\
|
P
[
\
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16. Insurance: Select either (1) or (2) below:

As referenced in the Request for Proposal, Comprehensive General Liability Insurance Acknowledgement Form, the
Insurance requirement checked under this section is applicable to this contract:

Insurance Requirement for (1) - 501(c) (3) contractors whose annual gross amount of contract work with the
State does not exceed $500,000, per RSA 21-1:13, XIV, (Supp. 2006): The general liability insurance requirements of
standard state contracts for contractors that qualify for nonprofit status under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code and whose annual gross amount of contract work with the state does not exceed $500,000, is comprehensive
general liability insurance in amounts of not less than $1,000,000 per claim or occurrence and $2,000,000 in the
aggregate. These amounts may NOT be modified.

O (1) The contractor certifies that it IS a 501(c) (3) contractor whose annual total amount of contract work
with the State of New Hampshire does not exceed $500,000.

Insurance Requirement for (2) - All other contractors who do not qualify for RSA 21-1:13, XTIV, (Supp. 2006),
Agreement P-37 General Provisions, 14.1 and 14.1.1. Insurance and Bond, shall apply: The Contractor shall, at its sole
expense, obtain and maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force,
both for the benefits of the State, the following insurance: comprehensive general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per incident
or occurrence. These amounts MAY be modified if the State of NH determines contract activities are a risk of lower
liability.

[{ (2) The contractor certifies it does NOT qualify for insurance requirements under RSA 21-1:13, XIV
(Supp. 2006).

Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract is deleted and the following subparagraph is
added:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability against all claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $1,000,000 per occurrence and excess, and excess/umbrella liability
coverage in the amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence, and.

17. Renewal:

As referenced in the Request for Proposals, Renewals Section, this competitively procured Agreement has the
option to renew for two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

18. Authority to Adjust

Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the P-37 and Exhibit B, Paragraph 1 Funding Source(s), to adjust funding from
one source of funds to another source of funds that are identified in the Exhibit B Paragraph 1 and within the price
limitation, and to adjust amounts if needed and justified between Sate Fiscal Years and within the price limitation,
can be made by written agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of Governor and
Council.
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18. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of ﬂns contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows: 1

19.

following language;

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder,
including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this Agreement are
contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any subsequent changes to the
appropriation or availability of funds affected by| any state or federal legislative or executive action that
reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement
and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In the event
of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the
right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to
reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice
of such reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any
other source or account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account
Number, or any other account, in the event funds Lre reduced or unavailable.

Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of the State, 30

days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its option to terminate the
Agreement. .

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination,
develop and submit to the State a Transition Pl#ﬂl for services under the Agreement, including but not
limited to, identifying the present and future nee?s;of clients receiving services under the A greement and
establishes a process to meet those needs. ‘ |

ate and shall promptly provide detailed information to
ited to, any information or data requested by the State
nsition Plan and shall provide ongoing communication
requested.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the
support the Transition Plan including, but not I
related to the termination of the Agreement and T
and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving services
under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity including contracted
providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of services in the
Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan submitted to
the State as described above.
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS — DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be allowable
and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance with state and
federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms required
by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible individuals by the
Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth. the total cost and sources
of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that period
of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Whenever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc., are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc., as they may
be amended or revised from time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire Administrative
Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and federal regulations
promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
Standard Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s representative
as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following certification:

1. By signing and submitting, this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Contractor’s Represenfative Title

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence 5 - 9’ /[ }
Contractor Name Date
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